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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Rigby, Idaho
Rigby, ID 83442

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Rigby, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City of Rigby’s, basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rigby, as of September 30, 2022,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Rigby, and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Rigby’s ability to continue as a going
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City of Rigby’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the City of Rigby’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Rigby’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises
the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an
opinion or any form of assurance thereon.



In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that
an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Jensen Poulsen & Company, PLLC

JENSEN POULSEN & COMPANY, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants

Idaho Falls, ID
| March 2, 2023
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City of Rigby
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2022

As management of the City of Rigby, we offer the citizens of the City of Rigby’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Rigby for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2022.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The net assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2022 from $36.6 million to $42.6
million, an increase of $6 million.

e Of the total net asset of $42.7 million, $11.6 million represents unrestricted net position and
$7.6 million of restricted assets which is available to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

e At fiscal year end, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending net position balance

of $24.6 million, an increase of $7.6 million from the prior year. The business-type activities
reported ending net position balance of $18 million, a decrease $1.6 million from the prior year.
e The net working capital for all funds increased from $15.9 million to $17.8 million at year end.
e Net fixed capital assets of the city increased by $1.9 million with depreciation charges totaling
$1.2 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Rigby’s basic financial
statements. The City of Rigby’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statement
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The governmental-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Rigby’s finances, in a manner similar to a business-
like manner. These statements include all assets and liabilities using full accrual accounting, which is
similar to accounting used by most large businesses. Full accrual accounting reports all of the current
year's revenues and expenses when they are obligated, regardless of whether or not cash has yet been
received or paid out.

These statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by property taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are supported by user fees
(business-like actives). Governmental activities include: general administration, public safety, streets
and roads, park & recreation, cultural (library), airport operation, capital projects and other special
revenue funds. The business-like activities include water, sanitation, and sewer revenue/wastewater
treatment.

The statement of net assets presents information on all the City of Rigby’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
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serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Rigby is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flow. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation/sick leave).

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Rigby, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All the funds of the city can be divided into two categories: governmental
funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains sixteen individual governmental fund and three proprietary funds (water, sewer and
sanitation) one agency fund and one internal service fund. The internal service fund is an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City
uses the internal service fund to account for the use of city owned equipment. Because this service
predominantly benefits business-type functions, it has been included within business-type functions in
the government-wide financial statements. The propriety funds provide the same type of information as
the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide separate information for the water, sanitation, and sewer operations, all of which
the City considers to be major funds.

The city has one agency fund type —“police reserve account” whichis a custodial fund. Custodial funds
are used to report activities that the city is not a beneficiary of and provides benefits to recipients in

accordance with the benefit terms.

The basic governmental wide funds financial statements can be found on pages 9-17 and non-major
funds on pages 41-42.
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Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the governmental-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
can be found on pages 18-38 of the audit report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position: For the years ended September 30, 2021 and September 30, 2022. Net Position
changed as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities All Activities
Net Position Sept 30, 2021 16,991,036 19,610,183 36,601,219
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 7,633,492 (1,326,535) 6,006,957
Net Position Sept 30, 2022 24,624,528 17,983,648 42,608,176
Percent Change 44.93% (6.76%) 16.41%
Following is the comparative statement of Net Position (2021 vs. 2022)
Governmental Activities Business-Types Activities Total- All Activities Net Change
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 Favorable/{Unfavorable)
ASSETS
Current & Other Assets 9,129,736 13,158,500 8,928,572 7,825,563 18,058,308 20,984,063 2,925,755
Capital Assets (Net) 9,694,296 12,986,496 17,357,201 16,602,374 27,051,497 29,588,870 2,537,373
Total Assets 18,824,032 26,144,996 26,285,773 24,427,937 45,108,805 50,572,933 5,463,128
Deferred Outflows
{Pensions) 232,070 471,758 81,539 148,976 313,609 620,734 307,125
Total Assets & Deferred
Outflows 19,056,102 26,616,754 26,367,312 24,576,913 45,423,414 51,193,667 5,770,253
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 1,460,114 1,910,776 668,322 1,221,854 2,128,436 3,132,630 (1,004,194)
Long-Term Liabilities 99,381 77,501 5,911,173 5,370,164 6,010,554 5,447,665 562,889
Total Liabilities 1,559,495 1,988,277 6,579,495 6,592,018 8,138,990 8,580,295 {441,305)
DEFERRED INFLOWS/RESOURCES:
Deferred Pension Inflows 505,571 3,949 177,634 1,248 683,205 5,187 678,008
NET POSITION:
investment Fixed Assets 9,255,554 12,565,874 10,953,699 10,750,729 20,208,253 23,316,603 3,107,350
Restricted 1,008,014 4,071,595 2,426,438 3,568,289 3,434,452 7,639,884 4,205,432
Unrestricted 6,727,468 7,987,059 6,230,046 3,664,630 12,957,514 11,651,689 {1,305,825)

Total Net Position 16,991,036 24,624,528 19,610,183 17,983,648 36,601,219 42,608,176 6,006,957
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As noted above, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of government’s financial position.
In the case of the City of Rigby, assets exceeded liabilities by $42.6 million at September 30, 2022
compared with $36.6 million of the prior year for an overall net increase of $6 million in net assets. The
increase represents the net change in the city’s addition: the governmental fund types increased their
net position $7.6 million and the business-types funds decreased their net position by $1.6 million.

The City’s net position between its net investment in capital assets and other assets remained relative

unchanged from 2021 to 2022 (55.2% vs. 54.7%).

Outstanding Debt:

The debt owed on the government activities and business-type assets decreased from $6.8 million to

$6.3 million as shown below.

Beginning Additions

DEQ Wastewater Loan 5,350,722
USDA-RD Wastewater Loan 1,052,780
Kartchner Homes 356,383
Bancorp Bank 82,359

6,842,244 0
Compensated Absences 55,948 10,848
Total 6,898,192 10,848

Retirement

396,350
155,507

Ending

4,954,372
897,273
356,383

64,239

6,272,267

63,036
6,335,303

Working capital (current assets less current liabilities) for the city’s governmental and enterprise funds
increased over the prior year with a 1.21% increase. With an overall increase over the past 5 years of a

total of $7.1 million.

Working Capital 2016 2017

Current/Other Assets 11,110,427 11,975,673
Current Liabilities 1,689,246 1,405,915
Net Working Capital 9,421,181 10,569,758
Year over Year % Increase (Decrease) 10.25% 12.20%

2018
13,286,436

2,046,285
11,240,151

6.30%

2019 2020 2021
14,811,399 17,246,426 18,058,308
1,344,055 1,722,718 2,128,436
13,467,344 15,523,708 15,929,872
19.81% 15.27% 2.60%

022

20,984,063
3,132,630

17,851,433
12.1%

The city’s has established a minimum fund balance guideline for various funds of the city. As a general
practice, the City strives to maintain discretionary unassigned fund balance equal to 25% or greater of
the succeeding year’s operating budget this allows for unforeseen emergencies, and to mitigate current
and future risks (e.g., revenue shortfall and unanticipated expenditures). Fund balance levels are a
crucial consideration, in long-term financial planning. Fund balance, created as a result of actual
revenue and expenditures deviations from the budget will be used to achieve and maintain the City’s
minimum fund balance goals and to meet the next year’s budget expenditures requirements.
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The following schedule shows the funds achieving the financial goal stated above.

Excess Fund

Frane it Bt puger  Working.
Cap.

General Fund 2,860,315 1,891,950 472,988 2,387,328
Library Fund 222,775 259,475 64,869 157,906
Parks 405,361 385,475 96,369 308,992
Roads 979,861 1,350,965 337,741 642,120
Rodeo Committee 59,941 75,000 18,750 41,191
Capital Improvement 2,216,845 2,945,910 736,478 1,480,368
Water Revenue (Net) 2,299,437 2,377,000 594,250 1,705,187
Sanitation (Net) 876,281 612,000 153,000 723,281
Sewer Revenue (Net of Bond) 2,805,344 1,772,000 443,000 2,362,344

As shown, all funds have excess reserves, thus achieving and exceeding the financial goal of 25%
reserves.

CITY-WIDE REVENUES
Total city-wide revenues totaled $11 million. The following chart shows the source of revenues by

funding source.

Total Revenues by Source — All Funds

Interest Earnings $-508)306 -

Net Pension Revenue (Expense) -1.8%
Sanitation Fees $322,337 2.9%

State Revenues $727,604 6.6%

Misc & Internal Charges - $623,916 5.7%
Other Fees for Services $752,932 6.8%
Sewer Bond Fees $870,980 7.9%
Water Fees $1,066,481 9.7%

Property Taxes $1,651,481 15.0%
Sewer Revenue Fees $1,814,425 16.5%
Srants/Capital Contribution $3,893,889 35.4%

m|City Wide Reyenues $11,012,756

T T T
(1,000,000) B 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000

Negative Interest Earnings:

The city experienced negative interest earnings for the year due to the accounting requirements
established by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which establishes the accounting
and financial reporting standards for state and local governments in the United States recognized the
need to report investments at fair value at fiscal year-end. Investments at year-end are therefore
valued at market value which may show mark-to-market gains and mark-to-market losses. Mark-to-
market losses are losses generated through an accounting entry rather than the actual sale of a
security. Mark-to-market losses can occur when financial instruments held are valued at the current
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market value. If a security was purchased for interest to be paid at a certain rate of interest and new
instruments are issued paying a higher rate of interest, the holder would have an unrealized loss, and
marking the security down to the new market price would result in the mark-to-market loss. When the
investment is redeemed at maturity the stated rate of interest is paid at that point in time. Conversely
when an investment is purchased in a declining interest rate environment, the investment when mark-
to-market, gains would be generated through an accounting entry showing the investments at a gain.
o Mark-to-market losses are losses generated through an accounting entry rather than the actual
sale of a security.
o Mark-to-market losses can occur when financial instruments held are valued at the current
market value.
o Assets that experience a price decline from their original cost would be revalued at the new
market price leading to a mark-to-market loss.

The city recorded a mark-to-market net loss for the year totaling $508,306.
CITY-WIDE EXPENDITURES
Total city-wide expenditures totaled $4.9 million. The following chart shows the allocation expenditures

by function.

Total City Wide Expenditures $4,960,914

Sewer Expenses - M&O $678,419 1| m Total City Wide Expenditures $4,960,914

Sewer Debt Services $564,620
Public Safety- $813,072

General Government - $1,144,289
Public Works - $326,565

Water Expenses - $569,948
Sanitation Expense - $307,952
Parks & Recreation -$235,959
Cultural - $204,708

Internal Service Charges - $115,382

T
- 200,000.00 400,000.00 600,000.00 800,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,200,000.00 1,400,000.00
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PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENT -
The city assessed $1.6 million from property taxes. The following pie chart shows the allocation of
property tax to the various funds.

89,062

136,443 m Property Taxes $1,651,481

m General Fund $1,007,806

m Library Fund $159,832

1 Road Fund $258,338

m Park Fund $136,443

m Capital Improvement
$89,062

L

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHT

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the city. At year end its unreserved, undesignated
fund balance was $2.8 million versus $2.6million for the prior year an increase of $259,065. The
general fund ending fund balance is 66% of the total general fund expenditures and fund transfers for
the current year.

The city authorized a $100,000 transfer from the unreserved fund balance to the capital improvement
fund which was made.

The mayor and council adopt annual operating budgets for all funds — governmental and proprietary
funds. The city measures its success of achieving its goals through implementation of the budget
process. Revenues and expenditures are recorded in the financial statements on the modified accrual
basis of accounting and budgets on a cash basis of accounting.

Actual general fund expenditures including net transfers totaled $1.433 million with total actual
revenues totaling $1.692 million for a net increase of $259,069. The largest increase in actual revenues
over budgeted revenue was from state sources; $165,456, (i.e., revenue sharing, liquor apportionment,
state replacement tax). Expenditures that were under budgeted; planning/zoning - $72,400, Other
Appropriations- $61,044; economic development - $16,937.

Annual budgets are published prior to adoption and public hearings are held. Budgets may be amended
during the year. Whenever budgets are raised over the authorized budget state statutes require a
public hearing and re-publication of the prior budget, increase and revised budget. The city did amend
its 2021/22 budget for year. The general fund budget was increased net $11,000 due to additional
grants and the wastewater treatment project budget was amended an additional $1.5 million from
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interfund transfers to pay for engineering fees associated with the new wastewater treatment plant
expansion.

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
The general fund had an operating budget of $1.6 million for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022,
versus the prior year’s budget of $1.48 million.

Actual expenditures (including transfers out) total $1.433 million out of the authorized budget of $1.636
million. The following chart summarizes the actual expenditures to the various departments within the
general fund.

General Fund Actual Expenditures — By Department

Total General Fund - $1,433,373

47,709 — 20,205

. 100,000
m Mayor/Council $47,709

m City Hall $20,205

m Administrative $227,988

1 Legal& Prof Services $125,842

m Police Services $770,225

m Planning/Zoning $72,360

® Economic Development $28,763
1 Other Appropriations $40,281

1 Transfers $100,000

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Inflationary trends for the City are about the same as the state level.

Interest rates on earnings remain relative the same compared with prior years however, interest
rates being paid are increasing in rates.

The City compares favorably with the mountain west region in economic growth. Revenues
from building permits after having seen an upward trend for the past few years, are seeing a
decline in new home construction permits and construction.

There has been an increase in net taxable assessed property tax values during the current and
past year. It is expected that the assessed values will continue to increase.
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e The City is updating its wastewater treatment plant to meet state ammonia removal levels.
Total costs of the updates total $26.645 million. The city received three grants totaling $24.173
million which will fund the $26.645 million project. The sources of those grants are:

o DEQ- American Recovery Plan $23.0 million

o Corp of Army Engineers - $673,330

o Ildaho Community Development Block Grant $500,000
The city will use $2.471 million of its savings in the sewer revenue fund to fund the balance of
the $26.645 million project.

USDA-RD has committed a loan of $9.2 million to the City at an interest rate of 1.5% for 40
years. The City does not anticipate using any of the USDA-RD loan.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Rigby’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or request for additional financial information should be directed to the city clerk/treasurer
at 158 West Fremont, Rigby, ID 83442.

David Swager, CPA
City Clerk/Treasurer
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; CITY OF RIGBY
Statement of Net Position

) September 30, 2022
Governmental  Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
| ASSETS
f Cash and cash equivalents.........covoiierineinennn $ 4,920,973 $ 3,144,367 $ 8,065340 $ 1,015,958
IV ESTITIEIIES v vveesserereeennesereersessessneeereresessssesrbanssrtasasussansseeses 5,134,152 4,339,017 9,473,169 -
i ReCEIVAbIES (NEE).wcerriveriiiiiviiniirie st 3,080,068 342,179 3,422,247 7,296
! Prepaid EXPENSES. ..o virrinrmieneriress e 23,307 - 23,307 -
Capital assets, net of depreciation..........covimeiieininins 7,175,104 16,243,846 23,418,950 -
: Capital assets, non-depreciable ..o, 5,811,392 358,528 6,169,920 -
i TOLAL BSSEES . cveeeirvereerervereessesessrseseernesisrsanesrsorsinsvasaesesaseans b 26,144,996 $ 24427937 $§ 50,572,933 § 1,023,254
— DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
¥ Pension deferred OUIOWS......oiiriiiiinrnncinnies $ 471,758 % 148,976 § 620,734 § -
, TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 3 26,616,754 $ 24576913 $ 51,193,667 § 1.023.254
{: LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
| Accounts PAYADIE.......ooviriiiinin $ 589,406 $ 326,866 $ 916,271 $ 1,682
| Other PAYADIE. ....ueviiiiirriirenrnncniee s 1,932 26,089 28,021 -
Salaries & benefits payable......cooeircin 50,447 13,735 64,182 -
WALEr AEPOSIES....vveiviivrrieiier it - 71,839 71,839 -
Net pension Hability.....coeiieniiii 885,155 279,523 1,164,678
Current portion of long term debt.......ccooooviiiiiiin 383,836 503,802 887,638 -
Total current liabilities $ 1,910,776  § 1,221,854 § 3,132,629 § 1,682
Long-term liabilities
Debt portion due in more than ONE Year.......oovwmrsereeien. $ 36,786 $§ 5,347,843 § 5,384,629 § -
Interim DEQ financing - - - -
Compensated aDSENCES.......overmevrirmvininiriiisi e 40,715 22,321 63,036 -
Total long-term Habilities...........oooeiicinins 3 77,501 $ 5,370,164 § 5,447,665 § -
Total HADITHES. .. vervvieiercvrerrrrirmeerr e ae e $ 1,988,277 § 6,592,018 § 8,580,294 § 1,682
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferred INTIOWS...ovvireieieereieneiinrreneie e $ 3949 § 1,248 § 5,197 § -
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3 12,565,874 $ 10,750,729 $ 23,316,603 § -
% Restricted for:
¢ Capital PrOJECtS.....cvmiveissrsieecrsiisimsm e 3,438,981 - 3,438,981 -
DIEDE SETVICE. v vvirverresrereiveesrrreinereseesessssissenasesnmessesressssunenes - 3,568,289 3,568,289 -
Community development
and improvement Projects.........oooevvviiiirnii 632,614 - 632,614 -
UNEESITICIED vt evireiesiverseresresarnereseses s sassamsnstssrnne e s sicnees 7,987,059 3,664,630 11,651,689 1,021,572
i Total net pOSItion.. ..o $ 24624528 $ 17983648 $ 42,608,176 $§ 1,021,572

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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E CITY OF RIGBY
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

i September 30,2022
WWTP Non Total
1 General Road Capital Improvement Major Governmental
! 'ASSETS Fund Fund Improvement Fund Funds Funds
CASN e e $ 803,996 $ 1,033,666 § 1,439,185  $ (300,848) $ 1,846,582 § 4,822,581
INVESMENLS . coecrenrrenrsinmssnssss s 1,940,191 174,680 1,720,673 - 1,298,608 5,134,152
r TaXES TECEIVADIE. ... vveerrrerseissssrersecsmsnisaraenns 16,926 4,252 1,402 . 4,961 27,541
i Other 1eceivablesS. . 216,657 162,896 1,156 2,444,174 227,644 3,052,527
Interfund receivable....or i - - 227,644 - - 227,644
i+ Prepaid expenses. .. 23,307 - - - - 23,307
‘ T Ot ASSELS..verrrerevererercssiiernisrernsnssmeesasaes $ 3,001,077 $ 1375494 % 3,390,060 $ 2,143,326 § 3,377,795 § 13,287,752
, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
g ;LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES
7" Accounts PAYADIE.crvrre i $ 89,859 §$ 28,553 § 21,120 § 393,690 §$ 52,361 §$ 585,583
1 Due to other gOVernment.. ... - - - - 1,932 1,932
* Interfund payable. ... - - - - 227,644 227,644
_ Payroll J1AbIIHHES. . cveverierrreerereersrersssnssrsnnsanens 35,626 6,863 - - 7,958 50,447
i Construction cash bond...ccoevniniiin - 356,383 - - - 356,383
| Deferred revenue 15,277 3,834 1,152,095 - 4,478 1,175,684
Total current liabilities....oo i $ 140,762 § 395,633 % 1,173215 § 393,660 § 294373 § 2,397,673
% FUND BALANCE
L RESHICE v vt e h - $ 979,861 § 2,216,845 & 1,749,636  $§ 2,416,349 § 7,362,691
Committed - - - 38,937 38,937
| ASSIENE. et . - . - 628,136 628,136
| UN@SSIZNE.crverrrrermserssssssssssssssinenrisissssssss 2,860,315 - - - - 2,860,315
Total fund balance.....c.oevviinnmseeniine $ 2,860,315 § 979,861 § 2,216,845 § 1,749,636 $ 3,083,422 § 10,890,079
|
 “Total liabilities and fund balance.......ccoeeenrne $ 3,001,077 § 1375494 8§ 3390060 $ 2143326 § 3377795 & 13,287.752

PR

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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i CITY OF RIGBY

‘ Reeconciliation of the Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2022

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 10,890,079

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, furniture, and equipment)
purchased or constructed is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds. The Statement of Net Position includes those capital assets among
- the assets of the City as a whole. The cost of those capital assets is
| allocated over their estimated useful lives (as depreciation expense) to the
. various programs reported as governmental activities in the Statement
' of Activities. Because depreciation expense does not affect financial
4 ; resources, it is not reported in governmental funds.

Cost of capital assets 17,606,374
Depreciation expense to date (4,619,878) 12,986,496

Property taxes and assessments that are not available to pay for current period
expenditures are deferred in the funds. 1,175,684

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
| therefore are not reported in the funds.
| Capital leases (64,239)
N Compensated absences (40,715) (104,954)

| GASB 68 requires the accrual of net pension assets and liabilities and the
L deferred inflows and outflows of resources related thereto.

Net pension liability (885,155)
Deferred outflows of resources 471,758
Deferred inflows of resources (3,949) (417,346)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
equipment usage to individual funds. The fund balance of certain
activities of the internal service funds is reported with governmental
activities. 94,569

! Total net assets for governmental activities $ 24,624,528

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

[
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CITY OF RIGBY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

September 30, 2022
WWTP Non Total
N General Road Capital Improvement Major Governmental
¢ REVENUES Fund Fund Improvement Fund Funds Funds
! Local Revenue:
PrOPErtY tAXES.c.cnevvcciesinrirrseesassisennesesncsniess $§ 1,013,826 % 259,617 $ 89,311 § - 298,060 % 1,660,814
7+ Earnings on investments (127,388) 11,558 (67,298) - (51,709) (234,837)
| Feesand fineS..uemnnisasniconns 70,937 - - - - 70,937
Charges for SEIrVICES.....vuiiriiiiieniisrne e 50,560 124,823 - - 402,817 578,200
o Miscellaneous and other revenue..........ccocvevene 13,308 5,450 32,822 - 163,740 215,320
| Stale TEVENUES..vurrrerrrimississsssssssersssrieseesissiines 550,323 248,729 9,030 - 85,931 894,013
[ GIAIES. oo srese sttt snssssanesiens 64,624 - 14,918 3,117,504 5,937 3,202,983
TOtal FEVENUE...cvrvvierirerersierisris s e searesasasens $ 1,636,190 § 650,177 $ 78,783 § 3,117,504 904,776 § 6,387,430
I
| EXPENDITURES
General ZOVEIMMENL.....c.cvrwiiivernirninsinsnennins $ 543410 $ - h - ¥ - 53,620 § 597,030
T PUDHC SAFELY...cvvvverrecsiiecrecinnicr s 755,507 - - - - 755,507
| Street and public improvement.......ooovcevvenene: - 528,907 - - 170,233 699,140
" Parks and recreation - - - - 188,114 188,114
- Culturaleccinienn 15,366 - - - 161,057 176,423
| Capital outlay.....ccovewee. 13,092 43,958 86,448 2,031,124 833,874 3,008,496
Total eXpenditures. oo, $ 1327375 § 572,865 $ 86,448 § 2,031,124 1,406,898 S 5,424,710
i Excess (deficiency) of revenue
! over eXpenditlres......cooivimiiviinncreesseneeeens $ 308815 % 77,312 $ (7,665) $ 1,086,380 (502,122) $ 962,720
b
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
"Other Financing SOUICE......vivieriivieiinierenrenes - - - - -
TEANSIETS v vcverer e (49,750) (123,000) 1,034,528 1,010,000 1,256,472 3,128,250
Net change in fund balances........c.ooeeinirieirnes $ 259,065 % (45,688) $ 1,026,863 § 2,096,380 754,350  § 4,090,970
| Fund Balance - Beginning.......ccoovovvivivenniionns 2,601,250 1,025,549 1,189,982 (346,744) 2,329,072 6,799,109
Fund Balance - Ending....ccove oo, § 2860315 _3 979.861 3 2.216.845 $ 1,749,636 3,083.422 _$ 10,890,079

Page 14

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF RIGBY
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Net Change in fund balances-total governmental funds $ 4,090,970
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense over the life of the asset. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capitalized assets 3,776,769
Depreciation expense (484,570) 3,292,199

Debt payments are treated as an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the payments reduce long terin debt in the Statement of Activities.

Capital lease payable 2022 (64,239)
Capital lease payable 2021 82,359 18,120

Tax revenues are deferred and not recognized in the funds until they are available
to pay for current period expenditures. In the Statement of Activities, however
they are recognized when levied. This is the difference between the amount
deferred at the beginning and end of the current period.

Deferred revenue - 2022 o 1,175,684
Deferred revenue - 2021 (777,949) 397,735

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

Compensated absences - 2022 (40,715)
Compensated absences - 2021 44,475 3,760

GASB 68 requires the calculation of net pension revenue (expense), and the
deferral of current contributions.

Current contributions 26,453
Net pension revenue (expense) (186,102) (159,649)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment
usage to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of certain activities of

internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 15314
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 7.658.449

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RIGBY
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2022

N Water Sewer Internal

i Fund Sanitation Fund Total Service Funds

| ASSETS
(0T » TS OO PO OO SO POPOU PO STRPRPRTPRS $ 1,214,867 123,666  $ 1,138,641  § 2,477,174 $ 159,034

¢ Cash- restricted for bond.......cooveveeviniiiii - - 606,551 606,551 -

4] INVeStMENtS.....coevvreceereennane 1,142,718 752,697 2,443,602 4,339,017 -

© Receivables. ... RO T OO VOOV 70,478 29,380 242,321 342,179 -

_ Capital assets, net of depreciation. ... 3,209,997 - 13,028,151 16,238,148 5,698
Capital assets, non-depreciable.......oiviimiin. 124,277 - 234,251 358,528 -
- Prepaid EXPEnSES... ..o ivirin e - - - - -
TOA] ASSEIS. .vvvvevveeeeerivissseseerssersersoerassersessesseassesssensersenesiss $ 5,762,337 § 905,743 $§ 17,693,517 § 24,361,597 § 164,732
| . DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
" Pension deferred OUIFIOWS....ovrrreererserssreerecesismsinmmerssrerns $ 49659 § 6,207 $ 93,110 § 148976 § -
Total deferred outflows Of FESOUICES. . vviivverrriinirencins $ 49,659 § 6,207 $ 93,110 $ 148976 $ -

ii TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS $ 5,811,996 § 911,950 $ 17,786,627 § 24,510,573  § 164,732

. LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

. Accounts payable $ 49,076 $ 20,387 § 253,580 $ 323,043 § 7,645
Other payable......... - - 26,089 26,089 . -

; WALEr dBPOSIES. e vvvrirriirirmssses st 71,839 - - 71,839 -

| Salaries payable & payrol! HHADHIEIES e evee i erreererersecesns 3,312 2,242 8,181 13,735 -

' - Net pension Hability....oovenemmncn. 93,174 11,647 174,702 279,523
Current portion of long term debt.... - - 503,802 503,802 -

" Total current liabilities $ 217,401 % 34,276  $ 966,354 $ 1,218,031 7,645

| Noncurrent liabilities:

" Bond payable - 10ng M. escninsesssssessssen $ - $ - $ 5,347,843 § 5,347,843 § -
Interim DEQ financing........ev.... - - - - -
Compensated absences PAYAbIC...ovviririie 1,380 1,341 19,600 22,321 -

Total TIADIHIES e cvevvrerirvrirsereesrerueresssesissesneessesnsesssnninsasns $ 218,781  $ 35,617 § 6,333,797 $ 6,588,195 § 7,645

. - DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

|~ Pension deferred INfloWS. ..o $ 416  $ 52 S 780 % 1,248 § R

Total deferred inflows of resources $ 416 $ 52 % 780 % 1,248 § -
__ NET POSITION

| Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..........oovviviinnns $ 3,334,274 § - $ 7,410,757  § 10,745,031  § 5,698
Restricted for debt SErviCe. v vinmiiminnrieirrineene - - 3,568,289 3,568,289 -
Net assets - unrestricted 2,258,525 876,281 473,004 3,607,810 151,389

Total NEE POSTHIOM..ceucrmriverrsinrrismseserserrecssrmsssers s $ 5,592,799 % 876281 - $ 11,452,050 _3 17,921,130 § 157,087

Some amounts reported for business-type activities
. in the statement of net position are different because
i certain internal service fund assets and liabilities
are included with business-type activities. 62,518
Net position of business-type activities $ 17,983,648

PR
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RIGBY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2022
Water Sewer Internal
Fund Sanitation Fund Total Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUE
Consumer Charges........ouvuvvrvenvinnnns $ 1,066,481 % 322,337 § 2,683,824 § 4,072,642 $ -
Other FEVENUE. .....eoveevereereisiirenserinies 154 (124,247) 1,587 (122,5006) -
Other SEIrVICES. . vvvrvrereririirirarisnnrnens - - - - 137,864

Total operating revenue. ......ouvere. $ 1,066,635 § 198,090 § 2,685,411 § 3,950,136 § 137,864
OPERATING EXPENSES :
SALATIES. .. cvevrereireerenerereeresis e ereeaens $ 99,425 § 15,632 § 190,418 $ 305,475 $ 15,977
Payroll tAXeS....ovvrriemreererineninissiininins 8,176 1,315 14,473 23,964 1,267
Insurance - employee......cooveniiirienennee : 17,228 2,250 33,488 52,966 3,201
Retirement - employee......ccccovvvinnennns 11,593 1,577 20,494 33,664 2,145
Legal fees.....cooviiinninnn - - - - -
Municipal shop building ........cccoevenns 18,496 1,539 20,608 40,643 14,143
UHHHES oo evevrsrremvereerenns s ssanaeans 693 - 78,431 79,124 -
Office supplies and postage................. 6,618 6,323 4,891 17,832 -
Maintenance and repairs.........cceeireen. 216,739 74 91,070 307,883 20,172
Training and travel.....nn 50 - 1,124 1,174 -
SUPPHES...vvev i g - 573 40,086 40,659 30,481
FUEL et iieeericrecteer e nimen st - - 4,102 4,102 13,020
Depreciation.....oueeeeeeneienccinnns 128,178 42,597 549,745 720,520 13,980
Miscellaneous EXPENSC..cvirvivenrrrnirrens 59,200 236,072 185,867 481,139 996
Irrigation assessments.........ccoouvvienen, 3,552 - - 3,552 -

Total operating eXpense.......o.oeee. $ 569,948 § 307,952 § 1,234,797 $ 2,112,697 § 115,382
Operating income (1088).....vvvrcrruriicnns $ 496,687 $  (109,862) § 1,450,614 $§ 1,837,439 § 22,482
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Wastewater project grant income........ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Water project grant inCome........c.couues - - - - -
Interest INCOME...uevvvvererveeerrririninneenns (68,379) (39,256) (165,834) (273,469) -
TNterest eXPense.....vvvinnerrnerinincerenins - - (8,242) (8,242) -
Reserve for debt service........ooovvvvnnnnn - - - - -
Gain (loss) on investments........c.eeen. - - - - -
Net pension revenue/expense (12,172) 4,538 (33,619) (41,253) -
Operating transfers.........ccveoniniinns (406,750) (268,750) (2,377,750) (3,053,250) (75,000)
Changes in net position.....c....oevenen $ 938 $  (413330) $ (1,134,831) $ (1,538,775) § (52,518)
NET POSITION
Total net position - beginning.............. 5,583,413 1,289,611 12,586,881 209,605
Total net position - ending.........ccvceven. by 5,592,799 § 876281 § 11,452,050 3 157,087

Some amounts reported for business-type activities
in the statement of activities are different because
the net revenue of certain internal service funds

is reported with business-type activities.

Change in net position of business-type activities

(67,832)
$_ (1,606,607)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RIGBY
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2022
Water Sewer Internal

! Fund Sanitation Fund Totals Service Funds
! CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from CUSTOMETS. v vevvciiiiiiirisenennes $ 1,129,645 $ 630,674 § 2,781,290 $ 4,541,609 §$ 137,864
|~ Payments to suppliers and eMplOyees....c.oovuivrnniiinncs (452,033) (267,187) (937,352) (1,656,572) (101,403)
i Cash provided by customer dEPOSIES. v 18,279 - - 18,279 -

Net cash provided (used)
by operating activities.......ovvrcrirecmni $ 695,891 $ 363,487 § 1,843,938 § 2,903731 6 % 36,461

'CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

i Transfers from (to) other funds.......cccoevvveecneeirinniiininns $ (406,750) $ (268,750) $ (2,377,750) $ (3,053,250) 3 (75,000)
i+ Netcash provided (used) by noncapital
’ financing aCtiVILIES....covvevivsvrrreesn e $ (406,750) $ (268,750) $ (2,377,750) § (3,053,250) $ (75,000)

‘CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for capital aSSetS.......ccecnrmininsssninen, $ (88,786) § - 5 (15,134) §  (103,920) $ -
“ Cash from capital grants......oovieverinnn - -
[ Principle payments......coo e - - (551,857) (551,857) -
Interest paid on long-term obligations.......coevevrcecnens - - 8,806 8,806 -
j Net cash provided (used) by capital and
1 related financing aCtIVItIES. ..o vevrivesncisesnsns $ (88,786) § - 3 (558,185) §  (646,971) § -

—_CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

TOEETESE INCOMC v e eveeiriveeesereseereeesrensiesraasisssee st sesssonens $ 154§ 121§ 740§ 1,015 % 1,881
Purchase of INVESHMENTS..c..iveviiiriiierirenrr e (35,557) (616,604) 2,075,217 1,423,056 -
Net cash provided (used)
from investing ActiVItIES.....cerririnreneciniennisinns $ (35,403) § (616,483) § 2,075,957 $ 1,424,071 § 1,881
Net increase (decrease) in Cash.......ovoiinne $ 164,952 § (521,746) § 983,960 § 627,166 § (36,658)
Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of year..............c.. 1,049,915 645,412 761,232 2,456,559 195,692
‘Cash and cash equivalents-end of year.......coovvriiiinens. 3 1214867 $ 123,666 $ 1,745,192 $ 3,083,725 % 159,034

I
| Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities

 Operating INCOME.....ueeveerineimssrmmmsrisssssres s $ 496,687 $ (109,862) $ 1,450,614 $ 1,837,439 § 22,482
| Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash '
5 -provided by operating activities:
DEPIECIAION. . covvoreiserssrssnrs st 128,178 42,597 549,745 720,520 13,980
}" (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable....iinninn 63,010 (949) 95,879 157,940 -
| Net pension TeVeNUE/(EXPENSE. ...cvceueeuusssrorsmssissssiserneenenss - 144,992 - 144,992
Increase (decrease) in customer depoSits.....ooovvweeniarinen: 18,279 - - 18,279 -
! (Increase) decrease in customer prepaids.....cerrnercennenns - - - - : 55
" Increase (decrease) in accounts payable........oiieieenn: (10,263) (1,832) (252,300) (264,395) 380
" Net cash provided by operating activities.........cooeeeeerees $ 695801 $ 74,946 $ 1843938 § 2614775 § 36,897

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Page 18



NOTE 1

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REPORTING ENTITY
The City of Rigby consists of patrons from Jefferson County.

This report includes all of the funds/accounts of the City. It includes all activities considered to be
part of the City under GASB Statement #2100, Defining the Governmental Reporting Entity.
Activities include areas in which the City can assert its authority either directly or indirectly by
financial means. The City has an urban renewal agency within its legal jurisdiction. The agencies
follow Idaho Code in their operations. The agencies boards, which must include one of the members
of the City Council, are approved by the City Council. The agencies adopt their own budgets based
on revenues prescribed by Idaho Code. The City does not have any authority over the urban renewal
agency either directly or indirectly.

The City is organized and operates under the provisions of the Idaho Constitution and the accounting
policies and practices of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applied to
governments. The city’s reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards
Boards (GASB) pronouncements. Proprietary funds and similar component units apply Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principal Board (APB)
opinions issued on or after November 30, 1989.

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, the basic financial statements of Rigby
Urban Renewal Agency have been included in the financial reporting entity as a discretely presented
component unit. It is presented as a separate column within the basic financial statements. The City
appoints the governing body of the Agency. The Agency is comprised of volunteers who devote
their time to improving and enhancing the quality of life within the City of Rigby.

For financial reporting purposes on the government-wide financial statements, the City has
capitalized improvement projects that the Agency has paid for and donated to the City for public use.

A copy of the Rigby Urban Renewal Agency audit may be obtained at the City office.
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the City). These statements include the financial
activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting
of internal balances and transfers. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities.
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CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, Continued
Basis of Presentation, continued

Program revenues include (a) fees, fines and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s
funds. Separate statements for each fund category—governmental and proprietary—are presented.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated
and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Road Fund. This fund is responsible for the operation, maintenance and development of roads within
the City’s jurisdiction.

WWTP Improvement Fund. This fund is used to pay expenses related to certain contracts of the
WWTP improvement project.

Capital Improvements Fund. This fund is used to help fund capital improvement projects for the
city.
The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water Fund, This fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and development of the City’s water
resources.

Sewer Fund, This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s sewer system.

Sanitation Fund, This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s sanitation
system. :

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
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CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, Continued

Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or

giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days
after year-end. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are considered to be
susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except
for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs,
followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the City follow FASB
Statements and Interpretations issued on or after November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB
pronouncements.

C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY
Cash and Investments

The cash balances of substantially all funds are pooled and invested by the City Clerk for the
purpose of increasing earnings through investment activities. The pooled investments are reported at
fair value at September 30, 2022 based on market prices. Cash also includes funds held at the Local
Government Investment Pool. The cash at the Local Government Investment Pool earns interest at a
variable rate and is available upon demand. Earnings on the pooled funds are apportioned and paid
or credited to the funds based on the balance of each participating fund.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City considers cash and cash equivalents in the proprietary funds to be cash on hand and
demand deposits. Demand deposits include money market accounts and certificates of deposit. In
addition, because the Local Government Investment Pool is sufficiently liquid to permit withdrawal
of cash at any time without prior notice or penalty, equity in the pool is also deemed to be a cash
equivalent.
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CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY, Continued
Receivables and Payables

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectables. Because
property taxes attach as an enforceable lien after three years of delinquency, the City feels that all
receivables are collectible.

Property Tax Calendar

Property taxes are levied in November of each year and become payable on December 20, and June
20, of the following year for real property and personal property.

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien as of December 20 following the levy in August.
Therefore, no amount has been set aside for an allowance for doubtful accounts. Property taxes
collected after December 1, 2022 are classified as deferred revenue.

Inventories and Prepaid Items
The City does not have any inventory items at September 30, 2022.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items. The City had the following prepaid item at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund $ 23,307
The balance represents SUTA overpayments in the amount of $23,307.
Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. General infrastructure
assets acquired after July 1, 2001 are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. The Standards did
not require that we track and maintain general infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 and
also do not require us to retroactively restate these assets for financial reporting purposes. The cost
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the
assets’ lives are not capitalized. The City has elected to capitalize all asset acquisitions that exceed
$3,000. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Buildings and structures 10 -40
Machinery and equipment 3-10
Industrial systems 30-40
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NOTE 2

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

C. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY, Continued
Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements
consists of unpaid, accumulated sick leave balances. The liability has been calculated using the
vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive
termination payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to
receive such payments upon termination are included.

Fund Balance Reserves

The five categories of fund balance are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned. For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City had fund balances which were
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned of $7,362,691, $38,937, $628,136 and $2,860,315
respectively. Restricted funds are those which are constrained to being used for a specific purpose
by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. Committed funds are those
which are constrained to being used for a specific purpose by the City itself. Assigned Funds are
amounts intended to be used for specific purposes as expressed by the City’s management.
Unassigned funds are those which are available for any purpose.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho Base Plan (Base Plan)
and additions to/deductions from Base Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the Base Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. ‘

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Following is a reconciliation of the City’s deposit and investment balances as of September 30,
2022: ’
Pooled Cash and

Investments

Demand Deposits $§ 2,545,121
State Investment Pool 4,913,668
Investments 9,473,169
Money Market 606,551
Total $ 17,538,509
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CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

NOTE 2 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Cash Deposits

, The following is a schedule illustrating the cash balances held by the City of Rigby that are insured,
i collateralized, or uninsured as of September 30, 2022. The City does not have a deposit policy.

Depository Bank Book FDIC

- Institution Balance Balance Insured Collateralized Uninsured
! Zions Bank $ 3,102,679  $3,098,442  § 250,000 § 63,761 $2,788,918
) Xpress Deposit 34,592 36,083 - - 34,592
Wells Fargo 10,476 10,476 10,476 - -
| US Bank 6,333 0,333 6,333 - -
State Invest. Pool 4,913,639 4,913,668 - - 4,913,639
’ Petty Cash 338 - - 338

i Investment Accts:
| Idaho Central 1,187,487 1,187,487 250,000 - 937,487
Westmark 467,204 467,204 250,000 - 217,204
) Mass Mutual 1,829,348 1,829,348 - - 1,829,348
TVI Investment 1,863,867 1,863,860 - - 1,863,867
RBC Wealth 1,006,198 1,006,197 - - 1,006,198
Edward Jones 382,666 382,667 - - 382,666
US Bank 1,116,133 1,116,133 250,000 - 866,133
; Wells Fargo 359,988 359,988 250,000 - 109,988
i Zions 1,260,279 1,260,279 250,000 - 1,010,279
Total $17,540.891 $17,538,509 $1,516.809 $ 63761 § 15960457

prm—

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
| September 30, 2022, $15,960,457 of the government’s cash and investments bank balance of
| $17,540,891 was exposed to custodial credit risk.

‘ Credit Risk: Per the Local Government Investment Pool management, the investment pool itself
| does not have a credit rating.

Investments
; The City’s investment policy, in compliance with state statutes, authorizes the Clerk to invest in the
: following — 1) Corporate Bonds, 2) Federal Agency Obligations, 3) Mortgage Backed Securities,
and 4) Mutual Funds. .

As of September 30, 2022, the City has the following investments.

. Investment Maturity Fair Value
1 Money Market n/a $ 150,658
: Certificates of Deposit Various 13,530,398
Federal Agency Obligations Various 375,565

| Mutual Funds n/a 3,635,350
Bonds Various 1,781,198
Total Investments $9.473,169

Concentration Credit Risk is the risk that the City has invested more than 5% of their total
investment in any one issuer. Currently, the City of Rigby holds the following individual issues in
an amount greater than 5% of their total investments:
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CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

i NOTE 2 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Individual Issuer % of Total Investment
: Franklin US GOV 30.40%
i Fixed Income Funds 20.34%
‘ Corporate Issues 17.70%
Lord Abbet 7.06%
5 Pimco 5.05%
i Loomis Sayles 2.25%
Goldman Sachs 1.94%

i Credit Risk: The City’s investments are rated by the two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations—
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investment Services. Investments in US Government Agencies, Corporate Bonds,

and Mutual Funds are rated AAA and Aaa, respectively.
NOTE 3 RECEIVABLES

! Receivables at year end consist of the following:

Street Other Enterprise Funds
; General and Road Governmental Sewer
‘1 Fund Fund Funds ‘Water Sewer Sanitation  Collection
‘ Local Sources
Property Taxes $ 16,926 § 4,252 $ 6,363 $ - $ - % - $ -
Consumer Fees - - - 70,478 242,321 29,380 -
Other - 89,130 - - - - - -
Total Local $ 16926 $ 93382 b 6,363 $ 70478 $ 242321 § 29380 $ -

Federal Sources

Other Fed Sources $ - 3 - $ 2,444,174

Total Federal $ - 3 - $ 2444174

State Sources

Other State Revenue  $216,657 § 73,766 $ 228800
Total Receivable $233,583 § 167,148 $ 2,679337

NOTE 4 INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Interfund Receivable/Payable

During the course of its operations, the City had numerous transactions between funds to finance
operations, provide services, construct assets, and service debt. As of September 30, 2022 the
LID#8 and LID #9 funds owed the Capital Improvement fund $227,644 to payback the initial
funding of the LID projects. Funds are remitted back to Capital Improvement as they are received
from assessments to the property owners.

The following interfund operating transfers were made during the fiscal year to cover expenditures
j from operations:

Page 25



o -

[U————

JR—

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS, Continued

Major Funds Transfers To Transfers From
General $ 56,250 $ 106,000
Capital Improvement 1,054,528 20,000
WWTP Improvement 1,010,000 -
Roads - 103,000
Water - 406,750
Sanitation - 268,750
Sewer - 2,377,750
Non-Major 1,311,000 149,528

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Vehicles

During the fiscal year 2021, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with Bancorp Bank for
the lease of three 2021 Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD vehicles. Payments are due in 4 annual
installments of $27,453. The total amount outstanding as of September 30, 2022 is $64,239.

Cash Bond Agreement

In December of 2020 Kartchner Land Management was approved to construct a subdivision near
Hailey Creek. As part of the agreement Karchner was required to pay the City of Rigby $356,383,
all of which is to be paid back to Karchner after the completion of the subdivision. If the developer
fails to complete all necessary infrastructure work then the City may use this cash bond to complete
the required work.

Sewer Revenue Bond Issue

As of September 30, 2022 the City had one sewer revenue bond outstanding. The bond bears
interest of 3.75% per annum and matures December 22, 2040. Annual payments of principal and
interest are due in December in the amount of $168,270. The total amount outstanding as of
September 30, 2022 was $897,273.

Wastewater Project L.oans

The DEQ provided loan funds to the City which were being used to finance the construction of the
wastewater treatment facility as well as improvements to the wastewater collection system. As of
September 30, 2022, the loan balance payable to the DEQ was $4,954,372 for the wastewater
treatment facility. The loan is interest free with semi-annual payments of $198,175 and will mature
in April of 2035.

The following schedule recaps the changes in long-term obligations for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2022:

Beginning Ending
Governmental-type activities Balance Additions  Subtractions Balance
Compensated absences $ 44475 % - $ 3,760 $ 40,715
Kartchner Land Management 356,383 - - 356,383
Bancorp Bank 82,359 - 18,120 64.239
Total governmental-type $ 483217 § - $ 21,880 § 461,337
Business-type activities
Waste Water Project DEQ Loan $5,350,722 $ - $ 396,350 $ 4,954,372
Sewer USDA Loan 1,052,780 - 155,507 897,273
Compensated absences 11,473 10,848 - 22,321
Total business-type activities $6414975 $ 10,848 $§ 551,857 $ 5,873,966
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CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

Maturities of long-term obligations are as follows:

e

2022 $ 530,972
2023 536,020
2024 541,258
2025 546,692
2026 552,330
2027-2031 1,757,150
2032-2036 1,387,224
Total $ 5,851,646
NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2022, was as follows:
Sales /
Beginning Capital Other Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Acquisitions Changes Balance
Non-depreciable Assets:
Work-in-progress $ 1,861,771 $ 3,260,756 & - § 5,122,527
Land 688,866 - - 688,866
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings/Sites $ 4,509,200 § - % - § 4,509,200
Equipment 1,919,043 2,995 80,780 1,841,258
Infrastructure 4,930,280 514,243 - 5,444,523
Total capital assets $13,909,160 $ 3,777,994 $ 80,780 $17,667,544
Less: accumulated depreciation (4,214,863) (484.570) 79,555 (4.621.280)
Governmental activity capital assets, net $9.694296 $ 3292199 § 1,225 $12,986,496
Business-type Activities
Non-depreciable Assets:
Work-in-progress $ 302,842 $ 39,844 % - § 302,842
Land 75,031 - - 75,031
Depreciable Assets:
Water Fund
Buildings & equipment $ 4,719,777 § 64,076 $ - § 4,783,853
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,445.680) (128.176) - (1,573,856)
Water capital assets, net 3,274,097 (64,100) - 3,209,997
Sanitation Fund
Buildings & equipment 559,671 - 559,671 -
Less: accumulated depreciation (392.827) (42,597) 435.424 -
Sanitation capital assets, net 166,844 (42.597) 124,247 -
Sewer
Buildings & equipment 18,985,577 - - 18,985,577
Less: accumulated depreciation (5.466,870) (549,745) - (6,016,615)
Sewer capital assets, net 13,518,707 (549.745) - 12,968,962
Business-type activities capital assets, net ~ $17,337,523  § (616,598) § - $16,596,677
Internal Service Fund
Buildings & equipment $ 517,039 $ - $ - $ 517,039
Less: accumulated depreciation (497.361) (13,980) - (511.341)
Internal Service capital assets, net b 19.678 $ (13,980) b - 3 5,698
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NOTE 6

NOTE 7

NOTE 8

NOTE 9

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

General government § 484,570
Water fund 128,176
Sanitation fund 42,597
Sewer fund 549,745
Internal Service 13,980
$ 1,224 068
RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to a considerable number of risks of loss including but not limited to a) damage
to and loss of property and contents; b) employee torts; ¢) professional liability, i.e. errors and
omissions; d) environmental damage; €) workers compensation, i.e. employee injuries and f) medical
insurance costs of its employees. Commercial insurance policies transferring the risk of loss, but for
a relatively small deductible amount, are purchased for property and content damage, employees’
torts and professional liabilities. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the
insurance deductible provided for in the last three years.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Transactions occurring subsequent to year end have been evaluated through March 2, 2023, the date
which the financial statements were available and no events have taken place that requires
disclosure.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The City has not been involved in any related party transactions that would violate the Idaho Code or
applicable federal regulations.
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NOTE 10

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

PENSION ACTIVITY—EMPLOYER REPORTING

The City of Rigby contributes to the Base Plan which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI or
System) that covers substantially all employees of the State of Idaho, its agencies and various
participating political subdivisions. The cost to administer the plan is financed through the
contributions and investment earnings of the plan. PERSI issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and the required supplementary information for PERSI. That
report may be obtained on the PERSI website at www.persi.idaho.gov.

Responsibility for administration of the Base Plan is assigned to the Board comprised of five
members appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Idaho Senate. State law requires that two
members of the Board be active Base Plan members with at least ten years of service and three
members who are Idaho citizens not members of the Base Plan except by reason of having served on
the Board.

Pension Benefits

The Base Plan provides retirement, disability, death and survivor benefits of eligible members or
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members’ years of service, age, and highest average salary.
Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits with five years of credited service (5
months for elected or appointed officials). Members are eligible for retirement benefits upon
attainment of the ages specified for their employment classification. The annual service retirement
allowance for each month of credited service is 2.0% (2.3% for police/firefighters) of the average
monthly salary for the highest consecutive 42 months. Amounts in parenthesis represent
police/firefighters.

The benefit payments for the Base Plan are calculated using a benefit formula adopted by the Idaho
Legislature. The Base Plan is required to provide a 1% minimum cost of living increase per year
provided the Consumer Price Index increases 1% or more. The PERSI Board has the authority to
provide higher cost of living increases to a maximum of the Consumer Price Index movement or 6%,
whichever is less; however, any amount above the 1% minimum is subject to review by the Idaho
Legislature.
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NOTE 10

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

PENSION ACTIVITY—EMPLOYER REPORTING — CONTINUED
Member and Employer Contributions

Member and employer contributions paid to the Base Plan are set by statute and are established as a
percent of covered compensation. Contribution rates are determined by the PERSI Board within
limitations, as defined by state law. The Board may make periodic changes to employer and
employee contribution rates (expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll) that are adequate
to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. ‘

The contribution rates for employees are set by statute at 60% of the employer rate for general
employees and 72% for police and firefighters. As of June 30, 2022 it was 7.16% for general
employess and 9.13% for police and firefighters. The employer contribution rate as a percent of
covered payroll is set by the Retirement Board and was 11.94% for general employees and 12.28%
for police and firefighters. The City of Rigby’s contributions were $138,482 for the year ended
September 30, 2022.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense (Revenue), and Deferred Ouiflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At September 30, 2022, the City of Rigby reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The City of Rigby’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City of Rigby’s
share of coniributions in the Base Plan pension plan relative to the total contributions of all
participating PERSI Base Plan employers. At June 30, 2022, the City of Rigby’s proportion was
02956968 percent.

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City of Rigby’s recognized pension expense of
$159,649. At September 30, 2022 the City of Rigby reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $§ 128,072 $ 5,198
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 187,877 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 267,979 -

Changes in the employer’s proportion and differences
between the employer’s contributions and
the employer’s proportionate contributions - -

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 34,80 -
TOTAL $ 618,735 $ 5,198
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NOTE 10

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

PENSION ACTIVITY—EMPLOYER REPORTING — CONTINUED

$34,807 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending September 30, 2022.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions
through the System (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2021 the beginning of the
measurement period ended June 30,2022 is 4.8 years.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense (revenue) as follows:

Year ended September 30, 2022:

2023 $ 138,874
2024 5 150,761
2025 $ 69,727
2026 $ 221,369

Actuarial Assumptions

Valuations are based on actuarial assumptions, the benefit formulas, and employee groups. Level
percentages of payroll normal costs are determined using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under
the Entry Age Normal Cost Method, the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each
individual included in the actuarial valuation is allocated as a level percentage of each year’s
earnings of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age. The Base Plan amortizes any
unfunded actuarial accrued liability based on a level percentage of payroll. The maximum
amortization period for the Base Plan permitted under Section 59-1322, Idaho Code, is 25 years.

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.30%
Salary Increases 3.05%
Salary inflation 3.05%
Investment rate of return 6.35%, net of investment expenses
Cost-of-living adjustments 1.00%

Contributing Members, Service Retirement Members, and Beneficiaries

General Employees and All Beneficiaries — Males Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 11%
General Employees and All Beneficiaries — Females Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 21%
Teachers — Males Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 11%

Teachers — Females Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 21%

Fire and Police — Males Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 21%

Fire and Police — Females Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 26%

Disabled Members — Males Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 38%

Disabled Members — Females Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 36%
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NOTE 10

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

PENSION ACTIVITY—EMPLOYER REPORTING —~ CONTINUED

An experience study was performed for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020 which
reviewed all economic and demographic assumptions including mortality. The Total Pension
Liability as of June 30, 2022 is based on the results of an actuarial valuation date of July 1,2021.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using the
building block approach and a forward-looking model in which best estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Even though history provides a valuable perspective for setting the investment return assumption,
the System relies primarily on an approach which builds upon the latest capital market assumptions.
Specifically, the System uses consultants, investment managers and trustees to develop capital
market assumptions in analyzing the System’s asset allocation. The assumptions and the System’s
formal policy for asset allocation are shown below. The formal asset allocation policy is somewhat
more conservative than the current allocation of System’s assets.

The best-estimate range for the long-term expected rate of return is determined by adding expected
inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The
capital market assumptions are as of 2022.

2022
Asset Class DB Plans Sick Leave
Fixed Income 30.0% 50.0%
US/Global Equity 55.0% 39.3%
International Equity 15.0% 10.7%
Cash 0.0% 0.00%
Total 100% 100%
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NOTE 10

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

PENSION ACTIVITY—EMPLOYER REPORTING —~ CONTINUED
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.35%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at
the current contribution rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined net of pension plan investment expense but without reduction
for pension plan administrative expense.

Sensitivity of the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate.

The following presents the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 6.35 percent, as well as what the Employer's proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(5.35 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.35 percent) than the current rate: ‘

Current
1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.35%) (6.35%) (7.35%)
City or Rigby’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset) 2,055,543 1,164,678 435,528

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERSI financial report.

PERSI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and the required
supplementary information for PERSL. That report may be obtained on the PERSI website at
www.persi.idaho.gov.
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NOTE 11

NOTE 12

NOTE 13

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The City of Rigby does not provide post-retirement benefits to its employees and has no reporting
requirement under GASB #45.

RIGBY URBAN RENEWAL

The Rigby Urban Renewal Agency (Agency) has been presented in the government-wide financial
statements as a discretely presented component unit of the City of Rigby due to its operational
and/or financial relationship with the City. The agency is organized and operates under the Idaho

Urban Renewal Law of 1965 (Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code).

A. The accounting policies and practices of the Agency conform to generally accepted accounting
principles applied to governments.

B. Cash and investments for all funds consist of the following at year end:

Cash — demand deposit (net of overdrafts) $ 329,684
Cash — State Investment Pool 686,274
Total $1.015,958

Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits as authorized by Idaho
statutes. The bank balance for cash demand deposits was $179,206 at year end. The entire
balance was covered by federal depository insurance. Cash held at the Local Government
Investment Pool is uninsured and uncollateralized.
The Agency follows the requirements of the Idaho Public Depository Law (Idaho Code Section:
Title 57-100) and applicable investment rights and restrictions cited by Idaho Code Section,
Title 67:67-1210.
C. Receivables at year end consist of the following:
Property Taxes $ 7,296
D. Payables at year end consist of the following:
Accounts Payable § 1,682
DEFERRED REVENUE
During the year the City received $461,596 from the American Rescue Plan Act. Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles state this money should not be recognized as income until it has
been spent. Until the funds can be recognized as revenue they will be held as deferred revenue.
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1 CITY OF RIGBY
Budget to Actual Comparison Schedule
General Fund
September 30, 2022

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
REVENUES Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Local Sources:
i Local Revenue:
] TAXES.1oveeeeeeireereessrenseaseerver s sisesassresressnees $ 988,800 988,800 $ 1,013,826 % 25,026
Earnings on investments......cc.coecceinnins 12,000 12,000 (127,388) (139,388)
q Fees and fINES...ovvvvveeeireerrinrciiieesinnenenne 111,000 111,000 70,937 (40,063)
! Charges for SErvices.......oumenoriirnnns 42,000 42,000 50,560 8,560
' Miscellaneous and other revenue............ 5,000 5,000 13,308 8,308
- SEALE TEVEIUES. cvvveveerererrrresreerssssreriesassann: 377,500 371,500 550,323 172,823
I i GTANES .t veeerevereerisrecseseeireresseeronesassansasennes 20,000 20,000 64,624 44,624
: Total reVENUE....covvvvirveerreeereininine s $ 1,556,300 1,556,300 $ 1,636,190 $ 79,890
EXPENDITURES
General ZOVErNMeNt.......ocoveerinercecriisnes $ 725,800 725,800 $ 543,410 $ 182,390
PUBLIC SAFELY.coveeervriveriinrsenisrencens 759,500 759,500 755,507 3,993
CUUTAL e seene s errsae s 16,000 16,000 15,366 634
Capital OULlAY......ccovvrvrririerrrrneinees 24,000 24,000 13,092 10,908
{ Total expenditures.......ccoocereerneinenn, $ 1,525,300 1,525,300 $§ 1,327,375 $ 197,925
| .
. Excess (deficiency) of revenue :
: over eXpenditures........covverrnnesiinns $ 31,000 31,000 $ 308,815 $ 277,815
|
. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
, Other Financing SOUICE.....ccoceeievverernnienns - - - -
‘ TLANSTEYS e vevieescereerestesrereceeeeessrbre s sannnes (31,000) (31,000) (49,750) (18,750)
Net change in fund balances...........c.oooinns 5 - - $ 259,065 % 259,065
‘ Fund Balance - Beginning........cccocecvvvcnees 2,601,250 2,601,250 2,601,250 -
Fund Balance - Ending.......ccooevioviveneenres $ 2,601,250 2,601,250 $ 2860315 3 259,065

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RIGBY

‘ Budget to Actual Comparison Schedule
Road Fund
September 30, 2022
) Variance with
l' : Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
! REVENUES Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)

Local Sources:
Local Revenue;

| TAXES . rvvesvereeeesnseeeesssssssssesseses s $ 246,950 $ 246,950 § 259,617 % 12,667
Earnings on investments.....c.ovcvciiiinnes 6,000 6,000 11,558 5,558
Charges fOr SEIVICES......vviveereneniiiissiniens - - - -
Miscellaneous and other revenue.........ceeevreenns 100,000 100,000 124,823 24,823
SHALE TEVEIUES. ..eiivvrerrerrererreesersissransninrrerssensisesonns 243,515 243,515 254,179 10,664
1{ - TOLAl TEVENUE...eeeeveereisreeireerereirenerieeesieennssssesns $ 596,465 § 596,465 % 650,177 % 53,712
‘ EXPENDITURES
Street and public improvement..........ooviieieeenn, $ 524850 § 524,850 § 528,907 $ (4,057)
Capital OULlAY.....ccoviverercrc s 310,000 310,000 43,958 266,042
Total eXxpendifures......ooeveinrrecsminininenns $ 834,850 § 834,850 § 572,865 & 261,985
| Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over eXPENAItUIes. .. .oovvverrreerrre s $ (238,385) § (238385 § 77,312 8§ 315,697
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TEANSTETS v veveeeererresviresriesreeeienessessrssasstssnsnsssenens © (123,000) (123,000) (123,000) -
1 Net change in fund balances........ceceveniiiiinnns $ (361,385) § (361,385) § (45,688) § 315,697
i
L FUND BALANCES
Beginning of the year ... 1,025,549 1,025,549 1,025,549 -
ENd 0f the YEAT. ..o cvveririrrriiesrsc s, $ 664,164 $ 664,164 % 979,861 § 315,697
|

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RIGBY
Budget to Actual Comparison Schedule
WWTP Improvement Fund
September 30, 2022

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
REVENUES Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Local Sources:
Local Revenue:
Earnings on investments.......ccooovevenrerceenens $ - 5 - $ - $ -
Fees and fiNes....ovveeervier e sererenecinnesnnes e - - 3,117,504 3,117,504
TOtal TEVENUE. c.vcveeeireereerirereererecsisrensreseeseanns $ - $ - $ 3,117,504 % 3,117,504
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay......cccovrvmrvrercnns e $ 500,000 $ 500,000 § 2,031,124 § (1,531,124)
Total expenditures........ccovvevnirrrrcincnonninns $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ 2,031,124 § (1,531,124)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over eXPENditUIes.......ccvveereeersinnrnncseeeens $ (500,000) $ (500,000) $ 1,086,380 $ 1,586,380
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TEANSTEIS. cv.vevvevereeeeeiereereere et sisas s 123,000 123,000 1,010,000 887,000
Net change in fund balances.........ococevieininns $ (377,000) $ (377,0000 $ 2,096,380 § 2,473,380
FUND BALANCES
Beginning of the Year.......ccvvvenciiinnnnnnns (346,744) (346,744) (346,744) -
End 0f the Year...ccocevmcrircrirninirinnrrccieeiiins $ (723.744) $ (723,744) _$§ 1,749,636 _$ 2,473,380

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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: CITY OF RIGBY
' Budget to Actual Comparison Schedule
Capital Improvement Fund

September 30, 2022
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
REVENUES Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
Local Sources:

Local Revenue:

} TAXES e eereeeeisrsesrnssesssessenensesessssesnnas $ 85,650 $ 85,650 $ 89,311  $ 3,661
Earnings on investments.......cececercreenien: 5,000 5,000 (67,298) (72,298)
Miscellaneous and other revenue............ - - 32,822 32,822

SEATE TEVENUECS. cevvierirreerrrereernreessonrerasesnanes 8,575 8,575 9,030 455
GIBINES . cvveeveeeeeeesiveevesnseesarseseseeneenessraeroneasnns 20,000 20,000 14,918 (5,082)

= Total FEVENUE...oiviiivvrerreerereeeseerncnsinn s $ 119,225 $ 119,225 3 78,783 3 (40,442)

!

: EXPENDITURES

: Capital outlay.......ocovmreieccnnnian $ 442,771 $ 442771 $ 86,448  § 356,323

f Total expenditures......cccevvvveinrrrcersicnnns 3 442,771 $ 442,771 3 86,448 $ 356,323

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over eXpenditures. ......oocvrnrmirasien $ (323,546) § (323,546) § (7,665 § 315,881
: OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
‘ _ Other FInancing SOUICE........ooviverivveeerennns - - - -
TTANSTEIS. oot eeeceie e eererrre e rreeve s srirerens 1,008,000 1,008,000 1,034,528 26,528

‘ Net change in fund balances.....c...c.cooccin. $ 684,454  § 684,454 b 1,026,863 3 342,409

. Fund Balance - Beginning.......cc.ocoevvvnieene 1,189,982 1,189,982 1,189,982 -

!i Fund Balance - Ending......cccovvinivniinnnenne $§ 1,874,436 $ 1,874,436 $ 2,216,845 3 342,409

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

CITY OF RIGBY

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
September 30, 2022

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING
The Idaho Constitution and the Idaho State Tax Commission prescribe the budget process and

procedures for governmental subdivisions. The City has satisfied the basic requirements prescribed
in the following particulars:

1) Formulation of subsequent year budget requirements by City officials
and personnel.

2) Perusal of formulated budgets by City officials.

3) Presentation of preliminary and final budget requirements in formal
news media of the City.

4) Open hearings to permit taxpayer input before such budgets are
formally adopted.

Subsequent control of budgets following adoption is accomplished through a budget-expenditures
control system with interim status accounting and reporting made available to officials and
employees for management purposes. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). All annual appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal
year.

EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET
Expenditures did not exceed budget amounts in any major funds during 2022.
PENSION - GASB 68

The City of Rigby contributes to a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI or System) that covers
substantially all employees of the State of Idaho, its agencies, and various participating political
subdivisions. ’

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, there were no changes of benefit terms, neither was
there any significant change in the composition of the population covered by the benefit terms. All
assumptions used in actuarial calculations were not significantly different from those used in the
past.
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CITY OF RIGBY
Schedule of Expenditures
General Fund
September 30, 2022

Total
GENERAL GOVERNMENT Expenditures

Z, Mayor & Council
P Payroll related expenditures $ 40,215

Public relations 1,850
Other 5,645
i Total Mayor & Council $ 47,710

City Hall

Payroll related expenditures $ 66

Utilities & telephone 10,003
e Maintenance 4,917
L, Total City Hall $ 14,986

| Administration

‘ Payroll related expenditures $ 158,195
| Office expenditures 29,904

Bank fees 35,240
Other 2,600
Total Administration $ 225939
I Non-departmental

Payroll related expenditures $ 19,669

Legal & professional 58,995
i Bonds & insurance 46,526
§ Other 48,124
; Total Non-departmental $ 173,314
‘{ Planning & Zoning
b Payroll related expenditures $ 60,931

Office expenditures 4,680
] Engineering fees -
L Other 2,370

Total Planning & Zoning 3 67,981

; TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES $ 529,930
1
’ PUBLIC SAFETY
‘ Payroll related expenditures $ 621,480
% Office expenditures 16,087
: Utilities & telephone 16,527

Police expenditures 89,537
] Maintenance & repairs 20,138
b TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 3 763,769
: CULTURAL
| Museum, rodeo, & discretionary cultural expenditures $ 15,366
- CAPITAL OUTLAY
X City Hall $ 5218
- Administration 2,050
i Police 11,042
i TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY b 18,310
{ TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES § 1327375

P e =
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JENSEN POULSEN & COMPANY, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
P.0. BOX 50700
185 S. CAPITAL
IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 83405

ERNEST M JENSEN, M.B.A,, C.P.A. TELEPHONE: (208)522-2295

ROBERT B. POULSEN, C.P.A. (208) 522-1330
SHER! L. POULSEN, C.P.A, FAX: (208) 522-2297

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mayor and City Council
City of Rigby
Rigby, ID 83442

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Rigby, Idaho, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Rigby,
Idaho’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 2, 2023.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Rigby, Idaho’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City of Rigby’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Mayor and City Council
City of Rigby, Idaho
Page 2

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Jensen Poulsen & Company, PLLC

JENSEN POULSEN & COMPANY, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants

Idaho Falls, Idaho

March 2, 2023
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JENSEN POULSEN & COMPANY, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
P.0. BOX 50700

) 185 S. CAPITAL

IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 83405-0700

ERNEST M JENSEN, M.B.A, C.P.A, TELEPHONE: (208) 5222295
ROBERT B. POULSEN, C.P.A. (208) 5221330
SHERI L. POULSEN, C.P.A. FAX: (208) 522-2297

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Mayor and City Council
City of Rigby
Rigby, Idaho 83442

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major F ederal Program

We have audited City of Rigby’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit
in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Rigby’s major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2022. City of Rigby’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, City of Rigby complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September
30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Eacl Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of F ederal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of City of Rigby and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of City of Rigby’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of offective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes,
regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to City of Rigby’s federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on City of Rigby’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about City of Rigby’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit,

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding City of Rigby’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

o Obtain an understanding of City of Rigby’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of City of Rigby’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal conirol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal contro} over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Jensen Poulsen & Company, PLLC

JENSEN POULSEN & COMPANY, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants

Idaho Falls, ID
March 2, 2023
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CITY OF RIGBY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2022
Section I — Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material Weaknesses identified? No
Significant Deficiencies identified? No
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material Weaknesses identified? No
Significant Deficiencies identified? No
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs? Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance

with 2 CFR section 200.5147 No

1dentification of Major Programs:

CFDA Number: Name of Federal Program.

#21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ' No

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

None
Section III - Federal Award Programs Findings

None
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Department of Transportation

CITY OF RIGBY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the year ended September 30, 2022

State and Community Highway Safety
National Priority Safety Program

Federal Accrued Grant and
CFDA No. Loan Disbursements
20.600 $ 13,837
- 20.616 6,740

S 20577

Department of Defense

Collaborative Research and Development

12.114 b 658,290
Department of the Treasury
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 b 1,134,025

Total Expenditures b 1,812,892

NOTE A

NOTE B

NOTE C

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of the City of Rigby under programs of the federal government for the year ended
September 30, 2022. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City of Rigby, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the
City of Rigby.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE

The City of Rigby has elected to not use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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